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1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

As part of a long-term strategy for the Delancey Park Galley Grave, 
the Admiral de Saumarez Trust commissioned Dr George Nash to 
prepare a Conservation Management Plan (CMP) for the site.  This 
exercise follows a recent programme of fieldwork undertaken by the 
Clifton Antiquarian Club (Bristol) that includes a measured survey, an 
archaeological evaluation and a full excavation of the Delancey Park 
gallery grave monument (executed between 2009 and 2011). 
Planning permission was required and granted for the intrusive 
elements of the project.  The Conservation Management Plan will 
assist in promoting and securing the long-term future of the site and 
the surround landscape.1 
 
This document explains the significance of the site, identifies how 
that significance is vulnerable and sets out policies for retaining the 
significance in any new use, management regime or alteration.   
 
Based on the archaeological programme undertaken by the Clifton 
Antiquarian Club (and projects preceding it), the Delancey Park 
monument can be considered an important archaeological resource.  
The monument-type is rare, being one of only three gallery graves 
located within the Channel Islands and the only one in Guernsey.  At 
present the monument is vulnerable to a number of environmental 
and social processes including plant infestation (in particular damage 
from root action), antisocial behaviour/ vandalism and exposure to 
the elements.  
 

                                                
1 English Heritage suggests that a Conservation Management Plan should be reviewed every five 
years. 

Since the re-discovery of the monument in 1919, the Delancey Park 
gallery grave has been subject to a number of threats including direct 
and indirect vandalism, previous park regimes and several 
archaeological investigations.  This report will include a SWOT analysis 
which will identify a number of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities 
and threats to the site.  

The CMP (i.e. this document) is the first step in preparing a series of 
short and long-term management policies that will include minor and 
major repairs/restoration to the monument, the planning and execution 
of re-erecting five uprights within the north-west section of the 
monument, and inaugurating a programme of (long-term) maintenance 
(i.e. the controlling of weeds, shrubs and the removal of litter and the 
monitoring of vandalism) and protection that will be supported by 
interpretation/education and promotion of the site (and its contextual 
relationship with other Neolithic stone monuments in Guernsey).  

Stakeholders involved in the parkΩs regeneration include the States of 
Guernsey Environmental Services Department, The Guernsey Museum 
and Galleries Service, The Société Guernesiaise and The Admiral de 
Saumarez Trust.2 

                                                
2 The Admiral de Saumarez Trust is a charitable organisation which is involved in a number of 
island-wide regeneration projects 
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2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Adopting a CMP for Delancey Park 

This plan has been produced in order to advise on the long-term 
strategies for the protection and conservation of the Delancey Park 
Neolithic gallery grave monument. The plan arises from concerns of its 
present state of preservation (see Figure 7). The scope of the plan is to 
outline any strengths, weakness, opportunities or threats that have or 
can occur to the monument (see Table 1). The plan follows consultation 
with The Admiral de Saumarez Trust and their long-term strategy for the 
park; the Delancey Park monument is arguably an integral part of the 
¢ǊǳǎǘΩǎ Ǉƭŀƴ ŀƴŘ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ŀŘƻǇǘŜŘ ōȅ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǎǘŀƪŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 

Guernsey Environmental Services Department, the Guernsey Museum 
and Galleries Service and the Société Guernesiaise.  

  Site location 
Currently, the Delancey Park monument stands in scrubland within the 
north-eastern part of Delancey Park.  The site, listed on the Sites and 
Monuments Record (SMR) as MGU135, forms one of a number of 
prehistoric monuments that stood within the curtilage of the park; the 
Delancey Park monument is the only burial-ritual monument that 
survives within this part of the island (Figure 1).  

 

   
 
Prior to the early 19th century, Guernsey was divided into two 
islands that were separated by a (subsequently infilled) east-west 

water channel known as Braye du Valle; the smaller of the two 
islands was known as Clos du Valle (Figure 2).  The Delancey Park 

Figure 1.  GIS 
plan showing 
the location of 
the Delancey 
Park Monument 
(right of white 
arrow) (courtesy 
of the Guernsey 
HER) 

 Figure 2. Map 
of Guernsey 
dated 1757, 
by Jacques 
Nicholas Bellin 
(Delancey 
Park is 
marked with a 
red dot) 
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monument stands on a prominent headland of the main island 
overlooking the northern island and the channel that separated 
them.  To the west of the monument is an extensive plateau on 
which the base of Admiral de Saumarez monument stands.  It is 
probable that this plateau was levelled and excess spoil dumped 
around the periphery of the park to include an area of land 
between the Delancey Park monument and the northern edge; 
immediately east of the monument the land is formed of a c. 25 
degree angle of slope. 

2.2 Geology 
The Holocene geology comprises wind-blown sands - the result of 
primarily easterly wind deposition during the Neolithic and 
Bronze Age periods (see Simmons & Tooley 1981).  This deposit is 
intermixed with recent naturally-accumulated dark-brown humic 
earths (established from the surrounding vegetation).  The depth 
and extant of these soils (A and B horizons) are unknown, 
although two trenches excavated within the boundary of the site 
extended to c. 0.50m below the present ground level revealed 
further wind-blown (silty) sand deposits that probably formed 
during the Neolithic.   
 
The underlying solid geology comprises of St Peter Port gabbro.  
This small layered intrusion of hornblende gabbro and bojite 
(calcium plagioclase - hornblende rock) is local to this part of 
Guernsey and consists of small magnetite and sulphide-rich 
segregations creating in places mineralisation (e.g. magnetite, 
ilmenite and pyrite).  It is probable that the stones that construct 
the Delancey Park monument originate from this intrusion. 
 

3.0 UNDERSTANDING THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORICAL 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE 
The discovery in 1919, and the subsequent history and 
development of the site are long and complex. The excavation 
programmes that took place in 1919 and 1932 left many 
unanswered questions.  As far as we are aware no detailed 
measured survey plans existed prior to the recent programme of 
work; nor do any plans and sections relating to the two previous 
excavation regimes.  Surviving are several letters and two short 
newspaper articles that form the Delancey Park archive. As a 
result of this rather limited resource, the Clifton Team undertook 
a measured survey and a desk-based assessment of the site in 
2009. The survey and the primary research allowed the team to 
target specific areas of the site for an evaluation programme in 
2010. 

3.1.1 Historic map regression 
Four maps (including Figure 1 above), two of which were 
published prior to the discovery of the monument show the detail 
of the area, from enclosed fields in 1787 to Public Park in 1898.  
The 1787 Duke of Richmond map shows a set of rectangular and 
sub-rectangular fields that were probably delineated by turf and 
stone banking.  This field system was later incorporated into the 
parkland (Figure 3).   The lane network around this field system 
and the later public park still survives.  Access into the central 
field is from the north and west via Mont Morin and Rue des 
Monts.  Within the central field and occupying a slight south-
facing slope was a windmill. 
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The Saumarez Monument, erected in 1876 marked the location of 
this former windmill.   Geo-referencing of the 1787 map over the 
Ordnance Survey map of 1938 shows that the Delancey Park 
monument lay close to, if not underneath an E-W field boundary 
(Figure 3).  Johnston (1981, 99) supports this and suggests that a 
drystone (field boundary) wall may have extended over the 
structure, thus affording the monument some protection.  
 

It is argued by Cox (1976) that the capstones were removed and 
broken-up for the nearby military barracks which were constructed in 
1799 to house Russian soldiers.  Around the turn of the 20th century 
the barracks were demolished to make way for St Sampson's school 
which was built around 1906.  The Ordnance Survey map of 1898 
clearly shows the barracks and a nearby disused artillery battery 
(Figure 4).  Later mapping shows that the Delancey Park monument is 
located in what appears to be rough pasture.  Marked to the south 
and west of the site are a series of isolated stones (Figure 5); their 
origin was probably to demarcate an area around the monument. 

 

Figure 3. 1787 Duke of Richmond map showing the 
enclosed landscape of the Delancey Park monument 
(ringed in red) 

 

Figure 4.  Section of the 1st Edition Ordnance Survey 
map of 1898 showing the layout of the park and the 
location of the Delancey Park monument 
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The earliest cartographic reference to the Delancey Park site is 
the 4th Edition Ordnance Survey map of 1938 when the site was 
arranged as a series of dashed lines and was by this time 
designated a passage grave and referred to as ruins (Figure 5).  At 
this time the site was within rough pasture, north of an enclosed 
trapezoidal-shaped putting green.  To the north there are tennis 

courts (currently disused).  This map also shows most of the area 
east of a centrally cut north-south pathway is marked rough 
pasture with only the Saumarez Monument marked. 

 
 

Figure 5.  Section of the 4th Edition Ordnance 
Survey map of 1938 showing the location of 
the Delancey Park monument [referred to as a 
passage grave] (encircled in red) 
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Historic narrative 
The site was discovered in early 1919 following the removal of 
bracken and gorse3 followed by ground levelling within the NE 
corner of the park.  Workmen clearing the vegetation initially 
discovered two large stones lying side by side.  The States 
Architect, Mr T.J. Guilbert instructed the workforce to treat this 
discovery with great care, thinking that the stones formed part of 
a ŘƻƭƳŜƴΦ  CǳǊǘƘŜǊ ǎǘƻƴŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǳƴŎƻǾŜǊŜŘΣ ƴŜŀǊƭȅ ŀƭƭ ΨƻōƭƻƴƎΩ ƛƴ 
ǎƘŀǇŜ ŀƴŘ ƛƴ ŀ ΨǇŜǊŦŜŎǘƭȅ ƴŀǘǳǊŀƭ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴΩΦ  CƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 
discovery, a report outlining these observations was made in The 
Guernsey Star dated 12th June 1919 (see Appendix 1).  The report 
not only detailed this discovery but also noted a nearby semi-
circular arrangement of smaller stones, the majority of which, 
according to the report, had been broken up.  Experts of the day ς 
a Mr A. Collinette and Mr T.W.M. de Guerin suggested that the 
larger stones incorporated into the Delancey Park monument 
formed the remains of a dolmen, the capstones being earlier 
removed and broken up to construct a military barracks nearby.  
It is not clear if an official excavation by the Société Guernesiaise 
took place, and if it did, how detailed this project was, as no 
formal plans are known.4  A small number of artefacts, many 
probably contemporary with the construction and use of 
monument were recovered following its discovery and currently 
form, along with material recovered from the 1932 excavation, 
the Delancey Park archive.  
  
wŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ƛƴ YŜƴŘǊƛŎƪΩǎ ǾƻƭǳƳŜ όмфнуΣ мтп-5) was a small 
assemblage of finds recovered from the La Société Guernesiaise 
1919 investigation including fragments of bone belonging to an  

                                                
3 Also referred to as furze. 
4 A sketch plan of the site was made in August 1920 by Leonard Preston (see Appendix 1). 

 
ox, a few limpet shells, stone and pottery.5  The pottery comprised 
undecorated course gritty red and brown wares of varying 
thicknesses.  Several pieces were burnished.  Stone items included a 
fragment of a greenstone axe (or rubber) which had been cracked by 
fire, a small collection of flint chips and four gun flints (probably 18th 
century).  Based on the presence of the (questionable) greenstone 
axe fragment, the monument was probably in use around c.2500 cal. 
BC.  However, the exact whereabouts of this material is unclear. 
 
During the 1932 excavations it was considered by the excavator ς 
Miss Vera Collum, that the remains of a chamber was present at the 
western end, although based on the site images the excavation 
consisted of recording the deposits between the stones (see Figure 
6). 
 
In a letter dated 21st October 1932 Collum refers to Delancey Park as 
an allée couverte (Museum Ref: 192 ς see Appendix 1).  This type of 
monument is usually found in central and northern France and 
generally comprises a rectangular chamber delineated by a series of 
large uprights (there are some instances of smaller antechambers 
leading off around the main chamber entrance).  The monument 
type is relatively common in Brittany and around the Paris Basin, 
present within the Seine-Oise-Marne Culture and dating to the 3rd 
millennium cal BC.  Found within several examples have been the 
remains of hundreds of individuals.  Daniel (1960, 215) has suggested 
that some of the allée couverte group of monuments did not contain 
human remains and therefore may have acted as a form of 
cenotaph, commemorating rather than housing the dead.  

                                                
5 A small assemblage of material is housed within the Guernsey Museum archive. 
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Evidence of the excavation and its results are contained in a short 
letter to Colonel de Putron (member of the excavation committee 
of the La Société Guernesiaise).  Apparently, the site had been 
ŎƭŜŀǊŜŘ ΨǊŜŀŘȅ ŦƻǊ ŘƛƎƎƛƴƎΩ ŦƻǊ ŜȄŎŀǾŀǘƛƻƴ ōȅ ǘǿƻ ƭŀōƻǳǊŜǊǎ 
employed by the State earlier that week.  According to Collum the 
clearance revealed nine overthrown props on the north side 
whilst on the southern side four props remained.  The term prop 
used by Collum probably refers to what the modern literature 
calls an upright.  Also noted was a probable entrance corridor (or 
gallery section) at the NW end leading to a possible chamber 
which was still buried by made earth. However, when excavation 
commenced, Collum recorded not a NW chamber but a splayed 
entrance (or façade).  This splaying (away from the monument) 
was delineated by a series of fallen stones and the respective 
socket holes; Collum suggested that they had been [deliberately] 
tipped over. 
 
The finds from this excavation included a small collection of 
animal bone, found within a disturbed [cultural] black soil deposit 
that directly overlay the natural light yellow clays.  Within the 
same deposit, around the socket holes within the northern part of 
the monument was also found a number of sherds of thick, well-
fired brown to red course gritty pottery representing at least 

eight vessels.  According to Collum the interior (gallery) had been 
cleared out.  However, based on the archive photographs of the 
site, taken in 1932, excavation was limited to the removal of 
deposits around the stones rather than open area excavation.  It 
appears that none of the larger stones were removed off site for 
this project from their current locations.  The in situ position in 
1932 is supported by digital images taken in April 2009 and the 
subsequent survey of the site in October of the same year.  
According to both sets of images and the plan, only one large 
stone, on the southern side has been removed; its whereabouts is 
currently unknown.  At the eastern end of the monument at least 
two large stones, probable capstones, appeared to have been 
dragged from their original positions to the south; their removal 
is almost certainly the result of excavation of a section of the 
chamber.    

 
Although the monument appears to be largely intact, Collum does 
suggest that a number of the capstones were removed and 
broken up around 1878 for foundation material to support the 
nearby de Saumarez monument; however, it is not clear which 
ones were removed.  This being the case it could be that the 
monument was much longer and extended further east and west. 
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Between 2009 and 2011 members of the Clifton Antiquarian Club 
undertook a three-season research project which include the 
ƳƻƴǳƳŜƴǘΩǎ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǎȅǎǘŜƳŀǘƛŎ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ǎǳǊǾŜȅ όнллфύΣ ŦƻƭƭƻǿŜŘ ōȅ 
an evaluation programme in 2010 that include the excavation of 
seven trenches in and around the stone settings.  Based on 
information from the evaluation, the team embarked on a 
targeted excavation programme in 2011.  The results from this 

final fieldwork programme were considered problematic.  It 
became evident that the site had been severely disturbed, but no 
records of this disturbance had been made.  However, from the 
2011 excavation and the previous evaluation an array of locally-
sourced and imported artefacts were found which extended some 
3000 years of activity both within and outside the Delancey Park 
monument (Nash 2010). 

 

Figure 6.  The Delancey Park monument, 
looking east with the sea in view.   
 
 








































